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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALASKA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, No. 3:23-cr-00087-JIMK-MMS

Plaintiff, COUNT 1:
CYBERSTALKING
Vvs. Vio. of 18 U.S.C. § 2261A(2)
JOSHUA WAHL, COUNTS 2-5-
TRANSMITTING THREATS IN
INTERSTATE COMMERCE
Vio. of 18 U.S.C. § 875(c)

Defendant.

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times material to the Indictment:
l. JOSHUA WAHL was a resident of Dillingham, Alaska, in the District of Alaska.
2. 4chan.org (“4chan”) was a website that allows users to post content anonymously

in several discussion forums, or boards.
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3. On or about November 6, 2019, WAHL posted on 4chan “Kill all Jewish and Israeli
children” and a photo of a pipe bomb.

4. As part of WAHL’s online persona, he posted videos to YouTube.com (“YouTube”)
under the moniker “laseranon,” including videos of WAHL using high powered lasers and
videos of others using lasers as weapons to blind law enforcement officials.

5. Beginning in or around February 2023, Michael Chitwood, the Sheriff of Volusia
County, Florida, received media attention after Chitwood held a news conference
denouncing individuals who had distributed anti-Semitic fliers and broadcast a message in
support of Adolf Hitler.

6. Beginning on a date unknown, but not later than in or around April 2023, and
continuing through at least in or around July 2023, WAHL posted on 4chan numerous
threats to injure and kill Chitwood.

7. On or about March 31, 2023, WAHL sent Chitwood the following email threatening
to injure and kill Chitwood, in that WAHL stated that he was armed with lasers and
explosives, and included links to a video from WAHL’s YouTube account showing WAHL
utilizing a laser to burn a hole in a photograph of Chitwood, specifically in Chitwood’s

face, and holding apparent explosives in front of a photograph of Chitwood.
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Still waiting

To Michael Chitwood Fri 3/31/2023 10:13 AM

This email crignated outside of the 's Office. Pi cicking Inks, or emall.

| just wanted tothank you.
Your toothless threats to arrest me for the last 3 weeks have woken me from my funk.

https://youtube.com/shorts/IOgwTQCxsI ?features=share

Did you know that a laser like that actually can get hotter than the sun very fast?

You have Inspired meto continue my work.

So now im sittirg here, armad to the teeth with binary explosives, 37mm launchers, lasers that blind for ife in 1/15th a second and anti level 4 tungsten tip ammo with weapons with binary triggers, and it's all be ause of your

toothless threats toward me the last 3 weeks.

Ty for re-gniting my passions
>Laseranon

https://youtube.comjshorts/kniSqc1 BAz0?feature=share

8. The following are screen captures from the videos found at the YouTube links that

WAHL sent to Chitwood:

IN MINECRAFT

2 b

Page 3 of 7
Case 3:23-cr-00087-JMK-MMS Document 5 Filed 09/25/23 Page 3 of 7



0. On or about April 5, 2023, WAHL posted the following on 4chan threatening to
injure and kill Chitwood, in that WAHL stated “Blind and kill [Chitwood] in irl,” i.e., in

real life, and that WAHL was an “actual terrorist™:

View Same OCR Google iqdb SauceNAO Trace & 1679433217175721m.jpg. 54KiB, 768x1024
Anonymous ID:fmgzJpag Wed 05 Apr 2023 12:33:28 No.422416363 #& Report

Blind and kill shitwood in irl, not fucking Minecraft.
| have been posting this for a month and | have not been arrested.
| also got away with trying to blow up a synagogue

| am an actual terrorist!!!!

10.  On or about April 5, 2023, WAHL posted the following on 4chan threatening to
injure and kill Chitwood, in that WAHL stated that WAHL had “explosives, sound, plasma,
lasers and ap ammo,” and “Kill [Chitwood] in irl, shoot him the fucking head with a

overpressure 10mm round”:
View Same Google |igdb  SauceNAO Trace & IMG_20230405_130423.jpg, 1MiB, 19202560

1 Ipoll Anonymous ID:Nj7nU15N Thu 06 Apr 2023 01:55:13 N0.422493142 |85 i  view Report
Quoted By: >>422493220

Until you get the balls to arrest me irl I'll still be here.

Kill shitwood in irl, shoot him the fucking head with a overpressure 10mm round.

Also janny only blocked me mods are asleep so no ban yet.

I do not fear shitwood.
11.  On or about April 21, 2023, WAHL posted the following on 4chan threatening to
injure and kill Chitwood, in that WAHL stated “Kill Mike Chitwood in irl, not fucking
video games” and “Come and do something about it fedboys,” and included a photograph

of Chitwood with a hole burned in Chitwood’s face:
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View Same OCR Google idb SauceNAO Trace & 1680722825770803.png, 437KiB, 600x1050
Ipoll Anonymous ID:ZAvNS4rZ Fri 21 Apr 2023 23:45:43 N0.424409925 |8 ] view Repon

>>424409608
Kill Mike Chitwood in irl, not fucking videogames.

Come and do something about it fedboys.

My depleted uranium dust launcher wants to shred your lungs.

COUNT 1
12.  Paragraphs 1-11 are re-alleged.
13.  Beginning on a date unknown, but not later than in or around April 2023, and
continuing through at least in or around July 2023, in the District of Alaska and elsewhere,
the defendant, JOSHUA WAHL, with the intent to harass and intimidate Michael
Chitwood, used an interactive computer service and an electronic communication service
and electronic communication system of interstate commerce, and any other facility of
interstate or foreign commerce, including email and 4chan posts, to engage in a course of
conduct that placed Chitwood in reasonable fear of death of and serious bodily injury to
himself and an immediate family member, and caused, attempted to cause, or would be
reasonably expected to cause substantial emotional distress to Chitwood and an immediate
family member.
All of which is in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2261A(2).
COUNT 2
14.  Paragraphs 1-11 are re-alleged.
15.  Onor about March 31, 2023, in the District of Alaska and elsewhere, the defendant,
JOSHUA WAHL, did knowingly transmit in interstate commerce a communication

containing a threat to injure Michael Chitwood as set forth in Paragraphs 7 and 8.
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All of which is in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 875(c).
COUNT 3
16.  Paragraphs 1-11 are re-alleged.
17.  On or about April 5, 2023, in the District of Alaska and elsewhere, the defendant,
JOSHUA WAHL, did knowingly transmit in interstate commerce a communication
containing a threat to injure and kill Michael Chitwood as set forth in Paragraph 9.
All of which is in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 875(c).
COUNT 4
18.  Paragraphs 1-11 are re-alleged.
19.  On or about April 5, 2023, in the District of Alaska and elsewhere, the defendant,
JOSHUA WAHL, did knowingly transmit in interstate commerce a communication
containing a threat to injure and kill Michael Chitwood as set forth in Paragraph 10.
All of which is in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 875(c).
COUNT 5
20.  Paragraphs 1-11 are re-alleged.
21.  Onorabout April 21, 2023, in the District of Alaska and elsewhere, the defendant,
JOSHUA WAHL, did knowingly transmit in interstate commerce a communication

containing a threat to injure and kill Michael Chitwood as set forth in Paragraph 11.
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All of which is in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 875(c).

A TRUE BILL.

s/ Grand Jury Foreperson
GRAND JURY FOREPERSON

s/ Seth M. Beausang
SETH M. BEAUSANG
Assistant U.S. Attorney
United States of America

s/ Kate Vogel for

S. LANE TUCKER
United States Attorney
United States of America

DATE: 9/20/2023
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